
 
 

HAWAII HOUSING FINANCE & DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
677 Queen Street / Honolulu HI 96813   

Fax: (808) 587-0600  
 

CRAIG K. HIRAI 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
 

 

ADDENDUM NO. 1 

 

August 5, 2016 

 
 
RFP NO: 16-008-PPMS  

 
RFP TITLE: WAIAHOLE VALLEY STRATEGIC PLANNING CONSULTANT SERVICES 

 
PROPOSALS DUE: August 22, 2016 NOT LATER THAN: 4:00 PM HST 

 
 
This Addendum modifies or clarifies the solicitation documents only to the extent indicated herein, and all 
portions thereof not specifically affected by the addendum shall remain in full force and effect.  All addenda 
shall be added to and form a part of the RFP documents. 
 
 

Item #1 Addition:  The attached sign-in sheet and agenda from the Pre-proposal Conference held on 
July 20, 2016 are hereby added to and made a part of the RFP. 
 

Item #2 Addition:  The attached list of ground lessees, along with corresponding DCC&R lot numbers 
and tax map key numbers, has been derived from public records and is hereby added to and 
made a part of the RFP.   
 

Item #3 Question:  Re: Scope of Work, Item c. Community Visioning:  In order to satisfy HHFDC’s 
expectations, will HHFDC provide the Contractor with a list identifying: 
 

a) HHFDC staff names and contact information (email/telephone #) to meet or provide 
questionnaires; and 
 

b) Names of individuals for “State agency staff, as appropriate (e.g. Dept of Agriculture, 
Education, DHHL, and Health); civic, legislative, and business leaders, and influential 
external individuals”? 

  
Answer:  Yes.  HHFDC staff will also take into consideration Contractor’s suggestions of 
individuals to be included in part b of the above question. 
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Item #4 Question:  Re: Scope of Work, Item c. Community Visioning:  Is it HHFDC’s intent to create a 
vision and mission statement that covers parcels of land that HHFDC has no administration over 
(i.e. DHHL / DOE)?  The RFP indicates 1) after developing the vision statement, “develop a 
mission statement for the “Waiahole Valley subdivision” and 2) “the Waiahole Valley strategic 
plan should identify what actions that HHFDC and the community should take.” 
  
Answer:  In addition to lots owned by HHFDC, the subdivision includes 20 lots owned by 
DHHL.  HHFDC has certain rights relating to the DHHL lots through its role as the Declarant 
under the Declaration and through the 1998 Transfer Agreement with DHHL.  While Waiahole 
Elementary School and other, privately owned parcels are exclusions to the subdivision, 
HHFDC believes that the entire Waiahole community should be involved in the visioning 
element of the project. 
 

Item #5 Question:  Re: Scope of Work, Item d. Optional Task: Analysis of Leased Lots:  Will HHFDC 

provide contractor with copies of lessee’s GET and federal and state tax returns in order to 

conduct this analysis of agricultural lease compliance, under Declaration at section D. 2(a-b)? 
  
Answer:  Yes, to the extent allowable by law and subject to a confidentiality provision in the 
Contract. 
 

Item #6 Question:  Re: Scope of Work, Item d. Optional Task: Analysis of Leased Lots:  Will HHFDC 

provide Contractor with any summary sheets and documentation of HHFDC’s past evaluations 

of lessee lease compliance? 
  
Answer:  Yes.  Site inspection reports and summary spreadsheets are available (the latter to the 
extent allowable by law and subject to a confidentiality provision in the Contract.) 
 

Item #7 Question:  Re: Scope of Work, Item d. Optional Task: Analysis of Leased Lots:  Will HHFDC 

contact lessees in advance of Contractor performing this item to inform lessees that Contractor 

has been retained to perform this scope work?   
  
Answer:  Yes. 
 

Item #8 Question:  Re: Scope of Work, Item d. Optional Task: Analysis of Leased Lots:  Does HHFDC 

define “substandard” as defined under Chapter 27 Housing Code, Article 9. Substandard 

Buildings, section 27-9.1 Definitions, Revised Ordinances of Honolulu (ROH)?  Are there any 

other specific definitions of “substandard” that the contractor should follow to make a 

determination of substandard?   
  
Answer:  HHFDC has elected to use the above-referenced Revised Ordinances of Honolulu 

definition for this project. 
 

Item #9 Question:  Re: Scope of Work, Item e. Analysis of Vacant Lots:  Will HHFDC provide the 

specific TMK numbers for the vacant lots? 
  
Answer:  The attached list of vacant lot TMK numbers is hereby added to and made a part of the 
RFP. 
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Item #10 Question:  Re: Scope of Work, Item e. Analysis of Vacant Lots:  What are the inspection 

criteria or is this element more of an analysis? 
  
Answer:  This Scope of Work item is intended to be an analysis that likely will require 
inspections by Contractor. 
 

Item #11 Question:  Re: Scope of Work, Item e. Analysis of Vacant Lots:  Does HHFDC anticipate that 

inspections will require inter-agency review (such as an agricultural or SHPD opinion)? 
  
Answer:  No. 
 

Item #12 Question:  Re: Scope of Work, Item f. Analysis of Open Space and Kamehameha Highway 
Lots:  Will HHFDC provide the specific TMK numbers for these lots? 

  
Answer:  The attached list of Open Space and Kamehameha Highway lot TMK numbers is 
hereby added to and made a part of the RFP.  No other Open Space or Kamehameha Highway 
lots should be included in this item of the Scope of Work. 
 

Item #13 Question:  Re: Scope of Work, Item g. Strategic Plan Development:  If HHFDC is to perform 

optional item d., will HHFDC share its inspections and evaluations with contractor so that the 

findings may be incorporated into the strategic plan? 
  
Answer:  Yes. 
 

Item #14 Question:  Were there any conditions, agreements, covenants, requirements, etc. of the land 
purchase where HHFDC (HHA) received 795 acres in 1977?  If so, please provide. 
  
Answer:  No, not to the knowledge of HHFDC staff.  The land was conveyed via quitclaim 
deed.  The deed is included as an exhibit to the Declaration, which is provided as Exhibit C to 
the RFP. 
 

Item #15 Question:  What were the “actual” exemptions received from the City and County of Honolulu 
– planning, zoning, construction standards for subdivisions, development, improvement of land 
and construction units? Also, please provide original application submitted. 
  
Answer:  The attached Council Resolution No. 86-148 is hereby added to and made a part of the 
RFP.  HHFDC has been unable to locate the HRS 359G exemption materials that were 
submitted to the Honolulu City Council. 
 

Item #16 Question:  Please provide previous and pertinent master plans for Waiāhole Valley. 
  
Answer:  The attached planning study completed in 1978 is hereby added to and made a part of 
the RFP. 
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Item #17 Question:  Please provide subdivision layouts/plans and as-built infrastructure plans associated 
with the Waiāhole Valley Agricultural Park and Residential lots subdivision.  Do these roads 
and water systems need to be dedicated to the City and BWS, respectively? 
  
Answer:  The attached Phase III construction plans are hereby added to and made a part of the 
RFP.  Note that Council Resolution No. 86-148 appears to preclude dedication of the roads and 
potable water system. 
 

Item #18 Question:  Were there any terms, conditions, etc. of the land transfer and existing leases 
associated with ACT 330 where DLNR directed the transfer of 108 acres of land to HHFDC 
(HFDC) to offer 9 long-term leases? If so, please provide. 
  
Answer:  Yes, they are outlined in the attached Act 330, Session Laws of Hawaii, which is 
hereby added to and made a part of the RFP. 
 

Item #19 Question:  Please provide Exhibit C of the Declaration of Restrictive Covenants for Waiāhole 
Valley Ag Park and Residential Lots Subdivision and Homestead Road Lands recorded in 1995. 
  
Answer:  To HHFDC staff’s knowledge, there are no missing exhibits to the Declaration which 
has been provided as Exhibit C of the RFP.  The Declaration exhibits are numbered, not lettered. 
 

Item #20 Question:  Could a “balance sheet” be made available?  If so, please provide. 
  
Answer:  The cost of the Waiahole Valley land acquisition and infrastructure improvements was 
written down from approximately $17.3 million to zero in 2004.  Currently, HHFDC’s financial 
statement carries an $849,883 asset balance for construction in progress relating to the Waiahole 
Valley potable water system. 
 

Item #21 Question:  Reference information indicated that 12 lots remain vacant and some were due to 
termination of leases. What are the reasons for the vacancies beyond termination? 
  
Answer:  Lots 95, 96, 102, and 103 were never developed or leased.  The remaining lots became 
vacant through involuntary (due to monetary or non-monetary defaults) and voluntary (i.e., 
friendly) lease terminations. 
 

Item #22 Question:  Reference information indicated that agricultural lot ground lease compliance is low. 
Why are they low and what are the compliance issues that are not being met? 
  
Answer:  Agricultural lot ground lease compliance issues are wide-ranging, from failure to 
submit annual tax returns to failure to sufficiently farm the land. 
 

Item #23 Question:  Is HHFDC committed to managing the Waiāhole Valley residential and agricultural 
lots in the long term? 
  
Answer:  HHFDC recognizes that, while it may not be the ideal ownership entity, it is likely to 
be a long-term owner of the Waiahole Valley residential and agricultural lots. 
 

  









 

 
 

HAWAII HOUSING FINANCE AND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
RFP NO. NO. 16-008-PPMS 

 
WAIAHOLE VALLEY STRATEGIC PLANNING CONSULTANT SERVICES 

 
PRE-PROPOSAL CONFERENCE 

July 20, 2016 at 1:30 p.m. 
 

AGENDA 
 

I. Welcome and Introductions 
 
a. Please sign-in 

 
II. RFP Review 

 
a. Register by email or fax to the RFP Contact to receive notice of changes or updates 

to the solicitation. 
b. Sign up for Hawaii Compliance Express (HCE): https://vendors.ehawaii.gov/hce/ 
c. Procurement Timeline and Key Information (Section One) 

 
i. Deadline for Questions and Clarifications July 29, 2016 
ii. State Response to Questions and Clarifications August 5, 2016 
iii. Proposals Due      August 22, 2016 

No later than 4:00 PM 
iv. Anticipated Contract Start Date   November 1, 2016 

 
d. Review RFP and all attachments, including contract terms and conditions. 

 
III. Background and Scope of Work (Section Two) 

 
IV. Questions & Answers 

 
This is an informational meeting for clarification purposes only.  Any statements made by 
HHFDC representatives are only intended to give proposers general direction and shall not be 
binding on HHFDC unless confirmed by written addendum.  For an official response, submit all 
questions in writing to the RFP Contact. 

 



Waiahole Valley Lessees of Record

DCCR Lot No. TMK No. Lessee Short Name

1 1‐4‐8‐10‐3 GARCIA, RICHARD/ETAL

2 1‐4‐8‐10‐5 VILLANUEVA,RUBEN C

3 1‐4‐8‐10‐6 BATALONA, WENCESLAU S

4 1‐4‐8‐10‐7 PACYAU SR, FELIX/ETAL

5 1‐4‐8‐10‐8 BOYDON, DOLORES TR

6 1‐4‐8‐9‐29 CLARK, CHULA/ETAL

8 1‐4‐8‐9‐31 SALAS, JAMES J & HANNAH M

9 1‐4‐8‐9‐32 GALICINAO TR

10 1‐4‐8‐9‐33 ULEP, SILVESTRE L

11 1‐4‐8‐9‐1 MIRANDA, STANLEY TR

12 1‐4‐8‐9‐2 DANO, PRIMIVITA F/ETAL

15 1‐4‐8‐9‐4 ADOLPHO, WARREN M/ETAL

17 1‐4‐8‐9‐16 ROYOS, JOSE Q & ELIZABETH P

18 1‐4‐8‐9‐34 MANALO SR, ISAAC/ETAL

19 1‐4‐8‐9‐35 PLUNKETT, ELIZABETH P/ETAL

20 1‐4‐8‐9‐17 KADOWAKI JR, DANIEL K/ETAL

21 1‐4‐8‐9‐7 SHIROMA, FRANK M/ETAL

22 1‐4‐8‐9‐18 BLOSSOM, MOLLY Y TR

26 1‐4‐8‐9‐22 FRIAS III, JOHN M/ETAL

27 1‐4‐8‐9‐23 MORIWAKI, CY J

31 1‐4‐8‐9‐27 OSHIMA, NATHAN Y

32 1‐4‐8‐9‐28 PICANCO, LEONARD E & CANDACE A

34 1‐4‐8‐9‐8 VILLANUEVA, PEGGY N

35 1‐4‐8‐11‐14 CABRAL, MANUEL R & DAILINDA M

37 1‐4‐8‐11‐16 LAGAPA, CLARINE M

38 1‐4‐8‐11‐17 KALAWA, JOSEPH M A/ETAL

39 1‐4‐8‐11‐18 COSTA, DAVID C & CYNTHIA J K

40 1‐4‐8‐12‐23 MATAYOSHI‐NEWMAN, FAY

41 1‐4‐8‐12‐10 SADOYAMA, NORMAN H & JOAN S

42 1‐4‐8‐12‐24 SHIROMA JR, FRANK M & STACI K

44 1‐4‐8‐12‐26 CARVALHO, LAWRENCE S & MAY S

45 1‐4‐8‐12‐27 UYEMURA, LAWRENCE I & HELENE L

46 1‐4‐8‐12‐28 ANTONE, WALTER K TR

47 1‐4‐8‐12‐29 PILANCA, PHILOMON & PATRICIA‐ANN

48 1‐4‐8‐12‐30 Lease not yet recorded

49 1‐4‐8‐12‐20 Lease not yet recorded

53 1‐4‐8‐12‐32 SPENCER, ALAN C/ETAL

55 1‐4‐8‐12‐34 OSHIMA, ROY H

56 1‐4‐8‐12‐22 SERIKAKU FARMS LTD

57 1‐4‐8‐12‐35 OSHIMA, TSUTOMU/ETAL

58 1‐4‐8‐12‐36 ONEHA, MAX/ETAL

60 1‐4‐8‐12‐38 NGUYEN, BAO N

63 1‐4‐8‐11‐20 LELEO, KATHLEEN K K/ETAL

64 1‐4‐8‐11‐21 KALEO, JAMES H & MARGARET K

65 1‐4‐8‐11‐22 HO, BYRON W Y & MERCEDES K A

68 1‐4‐8‐11‐25 DAVIS, EVERETT C & JULIA H

70 1‐4‐8‐11‐27 KANE SR, JAMES M/ETAL

72 1‐4‐8‐11‐29 KIM, SOONEE T/ETAL



Waiahole Valley Lessees of Record

DCCR Lot No. TMK No. Lessee Short Name

73 1‐4‐8‐11‐30 LAM HO, BERNARD U & SHONA M

74 1‐4‐8‐12‐40 LOPES, SERPHINE K/ETAL

75 1‐4‐8‐12‐41 FRAIOLA, ANTHONY J/ETAL

76 1‐4‐8‐12‐43 KAEKA, DENNIS L K TR/ETAL

78 1‐4‐8‐12‐21 REPPUN, JOHN L/ETAL

81 1‐4‐8‐12‐45 VAIAU, SEE T

84 1‐4‐8‐12‐49 LOPES, SERPHINE K/ETAL

85 1‐4‐8‐11‐2 OTA, VERNON T & DIANNA S

86 1‐4‐8‐11‐48 BADIYO JR, ALBERT & MAY K

87 1‐4‐8‐11‐31 GERNLER, PHILIP M/ETAL

90 1‐4‐8‐11‐34 DUMADAG, PATRICK F & ROXANNE M

92 1‐4‐8‐11‐36 PANONCIAL, JOSEPH M & BERNADETTE

97 1‐4‐8‐11‐41 TOLENTINO, JOHN M G/ETAL

98 1‐4‐8‐11‐42 SONG, JAMES Y S

99 1‐4‐8‐11‐43 TARUMOTO, HAROLD K/ETAL

104 1‐4‐8‐8‐12 TAIRA, DANIEL H/ETAL

105 1‐4‐8‐8‐19 MIURA, HOPE H/ETAL

106 1‐4‐8‐8‐16 RECARTE, MINNIE/ETAL

107 1‐4‐8‐8‐20 BAJET, LESLIE‐CARISSIMA/ETAL

109 1‐4‐8‐8‐21 HOE, CALVIN I/ETAL

110 1‐4‐8‐8‐22 LAM HO, DUANE D/ETAL

111 1‐4‐8‐8‐23 IGNACIO, MAURO & RITA/ETAL

112 1‐4‐8‐8‐24 IZAGUIRRE, SABRINA L P

113 1‐4‐8‐8‐25 FERNANDEZ, REIKO/ETAL

114 1‐4‐8‐8‐26 CLARK, PEARL

115 1‐4‐8‐8‐27 BOLIVAR, MAUREEN J/ETAL

116 1‐4‐8‐8‐28 ARICAYOS, AUGUSTINE C/ETAL

118 1‐4‐8‐8‐30 GARCIA, MICHAEL V/ETAL

119 1‐4‐8‐8‐1 GUILLERMO, LYDIA S/ETAL

120 1‐4‐8‐8‐31 SARINGAN, JOE B/ETAL

121 1‐4‐8‐8‐32 MAGALLANES, JIMMY R TR

122 1‐4‐8‐8‐33 SAGOLILI, ELENA R/ETAL

123 1‐4‐8‐8‐34 Lease pending pursuant to Act 330, SLH 1993

124 1‐4‐8‐8‐10 KEOHOKAPU‐MERIA, MADONNA A

126 1‐4‐8‐8‐2 Lease pending pursuant to Act 330, SLH 1993

127 1‐4‐8‐11‐1 TOM, CHANCE V/ETAL

128 1‐4‐8‐7‐10 REPPUN, ARTHUR

129 1‐4‐8‐7‐9 LAGAPA JR, ESMIRAGDO

130 1‐4‐8‐7‐8 Lease pending pursuant to Act 330, SLH 1993

131 1‐4‐8‐7‐6 Lease pending pursuant to Act 330, SLH 1993

132 1‐4‐8‐7‐13 JUMAWAN, STANLEY J & BARNETTE M

134 1‐4‐8‐1‐19 SCHLAPPER, VICTOR/ETAL

135 1‐4‐8‐1‐20 IGE, TAMYRA T

136 1‐4‐8‐1‐4 IGE, MELVIN M

138 1‐4‐8‐1‐1 CUNHA, DAVID A & GWEN K



Vacant Lots

DCCR Lot No. TMK No.

7 (1) 4‐8‐09‐030

13 (1) 4‐8‐09‐012

14 (1) 4‐8‐09‐014

25 (1) 4‐8‐09‐021

30 (1) 4‐8‐09‐026

33 (1) 4‐8‐10‐002

36 (1) 4‐8‐11‐015

61 (1) 4‐8‐12‐039

95 (1) 4‐8‐11‐039

96 (1) 4‐8‐11‐040

102 (1) 4‐8‐11‐046

103 (1) 4‐8‐11‐047

133 (1) 4‐8‐07‐014



Open Space and Kamehameha Highway Lots

DCCR Lot No. TMK No.

1 (1) 4‐8‐10‐003

4 (1) 4‐8‐10‐007

79 (1) 4‐8‐12‐001

83 (1) 4‐8‐12‐048

109 (1) 4‐8‐08‐021

110 (1) 4‐8‐08‐022
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, THE SENATE
SEVENTEENTH-LEGISLATUAE. 1993
STATE OF HAWAII ACT

S.8. NO.
330

301
S.D. 1
H.D.1
C.D.1

A 81 LL FOR AN ACT
RELATING TO WAIAHOLE VALLEY.

BE rr ENACTED BY 1HE LEC1SLA11JREOF TIlE srATE OF HAWAD:

1 SECTION 1. The housing finance and development corporation

2 (BFOC) is developing an agricultural park and low~density

3 residential development on approximately six hundred acres of

4 land in Waiahole Valley on the island of Oahu. BFOC holds title

5 to this land. The purpose of this park and development is to
•

6 provide long-term affordable rental housing for tenants in

7 Waiahole and Waikane valleys who were threatened with eviction

8 during the 1970s, to promote diversified agriculture, and to

9 preserve the rural lifestyle of the valleys.

10 There are ten parcels abutting the BFOC property under

11 control of the department of land and natural resources (DLNR).

12 These lands are farmed by the tenants, who are a part of the

13 wider Waiahole-Waikane community. Combining these lots with the

14 SPDC property would promote the master planni~g of diversified

15 agriculture 1ft Naiahole, make government functions more efficient

16 by havin9 one state agency overseeing" the area, and help bring
..

17 the community ~0gether.

18 The purpose of this Act is to transfer title to these ten

19 parcels of land to SFDC so that they may be consolidated in the

20 Waiahole agricUltural park.

RFS1750 88301 CD1 SMA
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S.fj. NO. 301
S.D. 1
H.D.1
C.D.1

1 SECTION 2. The following parcels of land are hereby

2 transferred from OLNR to HFOC:

L t::tJ "I"~ I Tf.. eoJo"'e 4. 0 acre.

La,.. Ho 13~.,. .. ;, - 7;,; 2.0 acres
I

R~ 1'1''''''' I AV'+~C4"" 5.0 acres

T", c.l.. ell" I( I TIt,..~s r;'~62. 5 acres

l< f!Y'f''''IIf I A,,+L. ...~ 5.0 acres

Tax map key number

RP - Il~L

RP- ~3~7

Je.p - 5';t 2

~p - 66 7 (

t<P-6S<:jg

r<r- '172.t./

I~ f - 'f I 9 7

R p- 4~67

((. P - bOb tf

2.0 acres

3.5 acres

17.0 acres

3.0 acres

2.0 acres

Lot size

El:, el"f: z.., C/ 0 ~.'''J 0

T ,e , ti1 el </,'""

VACCI"'+-

4-8-01:19

4-8-07:07

4-8-07:06

4-8-01:20

4-8-07:03

4-8-07:09

4-8-07:08

4-8-07:10

4-8-07:11

4-8-07:12

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14 The transfer shall be effective immediately and DLNR shall be

15 responsible for properly documenting the change in title.

16 SECTION 3. Upon taking title to the above-listed parcels

17 HFDC shall immediately offer leases to those persons who hold

18 revocable permits to the parcels from DLNR .s of the effective

19 date of this Act. The leases shall be negotiated and shall be on

20 the same terma as leases offered to all other persons leasing

21 parcels tr~ BFDC within the Waiahole agri~ultural park.
, ' ,

22 SECTIOR 4. This Act shall take effect upo~ its approval.

J$' • .. " !tI. JUM 23· \9930....... ..

RFS1750 58301 CDl SMA
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